
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
Mr Bill Badrock (Chairman)  

Parish Councillor Ronald Crawford  

Mr Tony Luxton  

Councillor David Lewis Conservative 

Councillor Stan Parker Labour 

Councillor Linda Redhead Liberal Democrat 

Councillor Kevan Wainwright Labour 

Councillor Mike Wharton Labour 

 
 
 

Please contact Lynn Cairns on 0151 471 7529 or e-mail  
lynn.cairns@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Wednesday, 7 November 2007 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Wednesday, 5 September 2007 at  
3.00 p.m. 
Committee Room 1, Runcorn Town Hall 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and (subject to certain exceptions in the Code of 
Conduct for Members) to leave the meeting prior to discussion 
and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN 
 

1 - 4 

4. STANDARDS BOARD INFORMATION ROUND-UP 
 

5 - 12 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



 
REPORT TO:                       Standards Committee  
 
DATE: 4 September 2007 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Committee Action Plan 
 
WARDS: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To enable the Committee to review, prioritise and update its work 

Programme. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee should consider and amend as necessary the work 

programme. 
  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The attached Action Plan was submitted to the Committee at its last 

meeting.  It was agreed that it should be used as a work programme, to 
be updated and included with each agenda. Members expressed the 
wish to be able to themselves prioritise the actions. This Report enables 
the Committee to do so. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton - None 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton - None 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton - None 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton- None 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal - None 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key risks have been identified which require control measures. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Document 
 
 
None 
 
 
 

Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
 

Page 2



 
 

ACTION BY DATE 

    

Further role play session repeating the ‘hearing’ on 
28 February 2007 with more time allowed 

OD October 
2007 

    

Role of Chair – To maintain impartiality throughout 
hearing. Facilitate and ensure compliance with 
procedure. Secure fairness of hearing. 

OD November 
2007 

   

Video of interview with Leader of Council and Chief 
Executive. Further use in conjunction with later 
training sessions. 

OD November 
2007 

   

Training DVD from Standards Board – not yet 
available. Useful to build into training when available 

OD December 
2007 

   

Develop Standards Committee internet website 
presence.  

OD June 2008 

    

Consider further training involvement by Charles 
Kerry (Chester) 

OD June 2008 

    

Consider further training involvement by Graeme 
Creer (Weightmans) 

OD June 2008 

    

Council Solicitor to arrange for Standards 
Committee members to attend other Council's 
Standards Committee hearings as a training 
opportunity. 

OD June 2008 

    

Council Solicitor to prepare and circulate flowcharts 
illustrating the sequence of events and deadlines in 
relation to hearings. 

OD March 
2008 

    

Consider use of external investigators – firms of 
solicitors/others. Impact on staff time if such action 
not taken.  

Chair/OD March 
2008 

   

Council Solicitor and Chair invite Halton's parish 
council clerks and chairpersons to meeting to 
explore training needs of parish councillors. 

Chair/OD December 
2007 

   

Halton's parish council clerks and chairpersons 
training session of parish clerks and chairpersons  

Chair/OD March 
2008 

   

Attend Standards Board Conference and report 
back to Standards Committee 

Chair/OD October 
2007 

Page 3



ACTION BY DATE 

    

Members of Standards Committee to receive copies 
of the Members Information Bulletin and the 
Leader's weekly newsletter.  

OD September 
2007 

    

Explore the idea of small looseleaf folder for 
members of the Committee to keep copies of key 
documents: e.g. Principles, Code of Conduct and 
Guidance.  

Chair/OD October 
2007 

   

Explore ways of using training video as part of civic 
responsibility training in Halton's schools 

OD March 
2008 

    

Consider cost of training initiatives and make 
provision in budget for 2008/9. Consider funding 
sources for training during 2007/8. 

OD November 
2007 

 
 

Page 4



REPORT TO:       Standards Committee 
 
DATE:   4 September 2007 
 
REPORTING OFFICER:   Strategic Director – Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT:   Standards Board Information Round Up 
 
WARDS:   N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To bring Members of the Committee up to date with the latest news from 

the Standards Board. 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the report be noted. 
 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 I am attaching a copy of Bulletin 34 released since the last meeting of 

the Committee. 
 
3.2 While this contains information previously published on the new Code, 

the section on a Confidential Information Protocol merits particular 
consideration. The explanation of when complaints will not be pursued 
further is also of interest bearing in mind that the local filter will be 
operating shortly. 

 
3.3 Although an Occasional Paper on predetermination and bias is promised 

by the end of July, this has not been published, although no explanation 
has been given for the delay.  This advice will be fundamental to the 
guidance which Committee requested at its last meeting.  Its absence is 
the reason why no draft guidance has been submitted to the Committee 
at this meeting. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None. 

Agenda Item 4Page 5



 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton - None 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton - None 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton - None 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton - None 
 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal - None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key risks have been identified which require control measures. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Document 
 
 
None 
 
 

Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
 

Page 6



THE
BULLETIN

Welcome to Issue 34 of the Bulletin.

The revised Code of Conduct was introduced two months
ago and many councils across the country have now adopted
it. Issues around adopting and advertising the revised Code
are covered in this edition of the Bulletin, along with useful
guidance on other provisions of the Code. The issues
discussed fall into two broad groups, those relating to the
adoption or transition from the old to the new Code, and
those around its application.

In addition, we offer advice to authorities on having protocols
in place for the release of confidential information by
members. Robust authority protocols can assist in promoting
and maintaining ethical standards and ensuring that
confidential information remains protected where appropriate.

This issue of the Bulletin also examines those decisions by
ethical standards officers to take no further action in a case,
and how the referral of cases for investigation can be a
stimulus to local action.

The Standards Board for England remains committed to
providing guidance and support for authorities to implement
and uphold the new Code. Hard copies of our guidance
booklet for members have been distributed to all monitoring
officers, and our training DVD is currently in the final stages
of production.

We are also involved in a number of upcoming events, more
details of which can be found later in this newsletter. We look
forward to meeting as many of you as possible at these
events and to hearing your feedback.

David Prince
Chief Executive

July 2007

Contents

Page 2
Issues surrounding the
revised Code of Conduct

Page 3
Cracking the Code: Event for
parish councillors

Page 4
Disclosing confidential
information: Authority
protocols

When no further action is
required

Page 5
"That's a wrap!"

Predetermination or bias: An
occasional paper

Events update

Page 6
Statistics

Contact
Enquiries line: 0845 078 8181
Minicom: 0161 817 5449
www.standardsboard.gov.uk
email: bulletin@standardsboard.gov.uk

#
34

Page 7



2 THE BULLETIN #34

Issues surrounding the revised Code of
Conduct

In the short time since the revised Code of
Conduct was introduced, our Policy and
Guidance advisers have identified a number
of frequently asked questions. Further
information on these common queries is
supplied below.

Adoption of the new Code

As soon as your authority has adopted the
revised Code, it must send notification to the
Standards Board for England. The easiest
way to do this is by sending an email to
enquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk

This notification should clearly state:

� whether the model Code was adopted

unamended or any amends that have been

made

� on what date the adoption occurred

� on what date the adoption comes into

effect

A simple notification will usually suffice and
your authority does not need to provide us
with a copy of the entire Code it has adopted,
unless you amend the mandatory provisions,
or add extra provisions to suit local
circumstances. We recommend that you
obtain legal advice before adopting such
amendments. This is to ensure that the
provisions can be enforced and do not break
any law or regulation.

Advertising your new Code

Under Section 51(6)(b) of the Local
Government Act 2000, you must publish a
notice in the local newspaper as soon as
possible after your council has adopted a
Code of Conduct. The notice should state that
a Code has been adopted and that it is
available to be seen by members of the
public at all reasonable hours.

When the previous Code was introduced,
some unitary and district councils organised
combined notices for councils in their area.
This can save money, especially where there
are a large number of parish councils.

To enable a combined notice to be arranged,
parish clerks will need to ensure that their
councils adopt the revised Code quickly.
They will also need to confirm to the
monitoring officer where copies of the Code
can be inspected within the parish. This
information must be included in the notice
published in the newspaper.

While the newspaper notice may take some
time to coordinate, your authority must notify
the Standards Board immediately after the
adoption of the new Code. This should not be
subject to coordinating several notifications at
once and should be undertaken by each
council without delay.

Amending paragraph 7 of the revised Code

Paragraph 7 says that members must have
regard to advice from their monitoring officer
or chief finance officer where they give it
under their statutory duties.

This paragraph is not mandatory for parish
councils. Therefore, parish councils may
choose to adopt paragraph 7 as it applies to
other types of authorities, adopt an amended
version of paragraph 7, or leave paragraph 7
silent.

The Standards Board believes the last
approach – leaving paragraph 7 silent – is
preferable, and this is the approach used in
our Model Code of Conduct for Parish and
Town Councils which is available from our
website. Paragraph 7 is drafted narrowly, and
is limited to the statutory duties of the
monitoring officer and chief finance officer. In
our opinion, the wording of paragraph 7 does
not translate appropriately to the parish
context and may cause confusion among
members and officers.

It has been suggested that parish councils
should adopt a version of paragraph 7

Page 8



3 THE BULLETIN #34

referring to the need to have regard to the
advice of the parish clerk. We do not support
this amendment. Unlike monitoring officers
and chief financial officers, clerks do not have
statutory duties unless they also happen to be
the authority’s chief finance officer and are
suitably qualified. Only in that case would it
be appropriate for members to be required to
have regard to a parish clerk’s advice.

It would not be advisable to remove the
limitation in paragraph 7 to statutory duties
and simply include an obligation to have
regard to all advice of your authority’s clerk.
In the Standards Board’s view, this
amendment would impose an unnecessary
burden on members of parish councils to
have regard to the clerk’s advice and lead to
unwarranted breaches of local Codes.

Registration of members’ interests

The requirements for the register of members’
interests are slightly different under the old
and the new Codes. This means that
members may need to complete a new form
once an authority adopts the revised Code.
However, this depends on the manner in
which the information is already collected.
As with the practice under the old Code, it
remains a matter for each individual authority
to review their existing procedures for
collecting and maintaining this information.

Registering gifts and hospitality

It has been suggested to the Standards
Board that rather than registering gifts and
hospitality in the register of interests, the
revised Code requires members to register
the interests of people that give them gifts or
hospitality. We believe this interpretation of
the revised Code is incorrect.

The Standards Board believes that the
revised Code requires members to register
any gifts or hospitality worth £25 or over that
the member received in connection with their
official duties, and the source of the gift or
hospitality. This must be done within 28 days
of receiving the gifts or hospitality.

The source of the gift or hospitality affects
whether you have a personal interest in any
business of your authority where it relates to,
or is likely to affect, the source’s interests.

Where an obligation to declare your personal
interest in any business arises solely from a
gift or hospitality on the register, members are
not required to declare the personal interest
once three years have passed since the gift
or hospitality was registered.

Any gifts or hospitality received more than 28
days before your authority’s adoption of the
revised Code do not need to be placed on
the members’ register of interests. However,
we understand that some individual
authorities require that members to do so. In
the Standards Board’s view, the revised Code
does not apply retrospectively and so does
not require earlier gifts and hospitality to be
‘rolled over’ onto the register of interests.
These items should be retained on the
register of gifts and hospitality maintained by
monitoring officers under the old Code.

Cracking the Code: Event for parish
councillors

The Standards Board for England is pleased
to be supporting the National Association of
Local Councils (NALC) with their major event
for parish and town councillors. Cracking the
Code will be held on 19 July 2007 at the
Hilton Birmingham Metropole and will give
councillors the chance to explore and discuss
the new Code of Conduct. In a keynote
address, David Prince, Chief Executive of the
Standards Board, will talk about the
implications of the new Code. He will also
discuss the changes to the system which will
result in all allegations about parish and town
councillors being dealt with by the standards
committee of their principal authority.

Other speakers from the Standards Board will
talk about the new rules around personal and
prejudicial interests, and the paragraphs in
the Code that deal with bullying. Speakers
from the Association of Council Secretaries
and Solicitors (ACSeS) will be talking about
the role of monitoring officers in advising and

Page 9



4 THE BULLETIN #34

supporting town and parish councillors, the
changing role of standards committees, and
confidentiality and the new Code of Conduct.

If you are a town or parish councillor and are
interested in attending, you can find more
information in the Conferences and Events
section of the NALC website:
www.nalc.gov.uk

Disclosing confidential information:
Authority protocols

Paragraph 4(a) of the revised Code of
Conduct prohibits the disclosure by
councillors of confidential information, or
information believed to be of a confidential
nature, except in a defined range of
circumstances that includes disclosure in the
public interest.

Disclosure in the public interest may be
justified in the following limited
circumstances, when all of the following four
requirements are met:

1) the disclosure must be reasonable 

2) the disclosure must be in the public
interest 

3) the disclosure must be made in good faith 

4) the disclosure must be made in
compliance with the reasonable
requirements of the authority

The fourth requirement means that before
making the disclosure a member must, in
addition to considering the first three
requirements above, comply with the
authority’s policies or protocols on matters
such as whistle-blowing or member-officer
relationships and confidential information. 

The Standards Board recommends that
authorities ensure they have such policies in
place to cover the possibility of a member
considering a release of information, and that
they take steps to ensure that all councillors
are familiar with the provisions.  

Appropriate and robust authority protocols
can assist in ensuring the protection of
confidential information where appropriate,
and in promoting and upholding high ethical
standards more generally. 

When no further action is required

Our ethical standards officers sometimes
decide that no further action should be taken
in a case. The Standards Board for England
recently analysed these decisions, commonly
known as “b findings”.

A b finding may occur when an ethical
standards officer is unable to conclude that a
breach of the Code of Conduct has occurred,
or in cases that are deemed insufficiently
serious to justify a finding of further action. 

The sample of cases analysed, from the
2006-07 financial year, showed that in a third
of all cases attracting a b finding, evidence
was not decisive enough to conclude a
breach. A further 17% of cases with b
findings were deemed insufficiently serious to
pursue a course of disciplinary action.

In many other cases, however, the reason
why no further action was initiated was
because the necessary remedial steps had
already been taken. This could mean that an
apology had been made, training had been
undertaken or interests had been registered. 

The sample revealed that a remedy was
already in place, or had been agreed, in 30%
of cases attracting a b finding in the 2006-07
financial year. Such action and improvements
often only come about after an allegation is
referred for investigation by the Standards
Board and would be unlikely to have
occurred otherwise. 

Rather than a b finding being a negative
outcome, therefore, findings of no further
action can often be seen as a tribute to the
effectiveness of the Code of Conduct and its
enforcement. 

Page 10



5 THE BULLETIN #34

The Standards Board firmly believes that one
of the measures of the Code’s success is the
improvement in the behaviour of councillors
and remedies of past mistakes. 

"That's a wrap!"

Filming for the Standards Board's new
training DVD on the revised Code of Conduct
has recently finished. The resulting film will
show the exploits of Grant Austin and his
fellow councillors and local authority officers
as they prepare for a potentially explosive
planning committee meeting. 

The programme examines the rules about
declaring interests, disclosing confidential
information and bullying. Training sections are
interspersed with the drama, and extras
include scene selection and subtitles.

The DVD will be of particular value to new
and continuing councillors who want to
increase their understanding of certain parts
of the Code. 

Copies of the DVD will be sent to all
monitoring officers in late July, and we look
forward to hearing your feedback.

Predetermination or bias: An occasional
paper 

Predetermination and bias have proven to be
both difficult and controversial issues for
many members and monitoring officers.
Although they are judge-made, common law
issues, and not part of the Code of Conduct,
the Standards Board has agreed to publish
an occasional paper to help clarify the issues.

Based on advice from leading treasury
counsel Philip Sales QC, the paper includes
examples of where members are
predisposed, and so can take part in a
debate and vote, and where they are
predetermined and their participation in a
decision would risk it being ruled as invalid. 

The paper will be available on our website,
along with the full opinion from Philip Sales
QC, at the end of July.

Events update

The Standards Board is looking forward to
meeting you, answering your questions and
listening to your feedback at a number of
forthcoming events. 

In addition to NALC’s Cracking the Code
event for parish councillors mentioned
previously, we will be attending the
conference of the Local Government
Association from 3-5 July 2007 in
Birmingham. 

Places are also booking up fast for our
Annual Assembly on 15-16 October entitled
Down to Detail: Making local regulation work.
The assembly will provide an in-depth look at
putting local regulation and the new Code of
Conduct into action and is a vital event for all
those who work with the Code. Visit
www.annualassembly.co.uk to book one of
the remaining places and to find out more
about the programme.

As we write, we are in the midst of our series
of 11 roadshows, held around the country
throughout June. They have been a great tool
for sharing advice and experience on
implementing the changes to the Code, and
how they will affect you and your authority.
They have also allowed us to listen first-hand
to your feedback, concerns and queries. 

If you have a query about the Code of
Conduct at any time, please contact our
Policy and Guidance department at
enquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk or on 
0845 078 8181.

Sixth Annual Assembly of 
Standards Committees

15-16 October 2007

International Convention Centre,
Birmingham

www.annualassembly.co.uk

Making local regulation work

Page 11



6 THE BULLETIN #34

Referral and investigation statistics

The Standards Board for England received

653 allegations between 1 April 2007 and 31

May 2007, compared to 605 during the same

period in 2006.

The following charts show referral and

investigation statistics during the above

dates.

Local investigation statistics

For the period 1 April 2007 to 31 May 2007,

ethical standards officers referred 66 cases

for local investigation – equivalent to 65% of

all cases referred for investigation. Since 1

April 2007 there has been one appeal to the

Adjudication Panel for England following

standards committee hearings. Of all cases

referred since November 2004 for local

investigation, we have received a total of 585

reports – please see below for a statistical

breakdown of these cases. 

Source of allegations received

Authority of subject member in allegations referred for

investigation

Allegations referred for investigation

Final findings

Standards committee determinations

Nature of allegations referred for investigation

Monitoring officers’ recommendations  following

local investigations 

Standards committee hearings 

councillors (37%)

council officers (4%)

members of
public (56%)

other (3%)

not referred (84%)

referred (16%)

county council (7%)

district council (20%)

unitary council (10%)

London borough (2%)

metropolitan (11%)

parish/
town
council (49%)

other (1%)

bringing authority into
disrepute (17%)

other (12%)

failure to register
a financial interest (4%)

failure to disclose a 
personal interest (11%)

prejudicial interest (21%)

failure to treat others with
respect (10%)

using position to confer or
secure an advantage or
disadvantage (25%)

no evidence of a breach (31%)

referred to monitoring officer
for local determination (5%)

no further 
action (51%)

referred to the Adjudication
Panel for England (13%)

no breach

breach

284 
reports

301
reports

no breach

breach

265
reports

254 
reports

no sanction – 77 

censure – 64

apology – 41

training – 64 

mediation – 2 

one-month suspension – 4

two-week suspension – 2 

six-week suspension – 13

two-month suspension – 12 

three-month suspension – 14  

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Committee Action Plan
	Committee Action Plan - Appendix

	4 Standards Board Information Round-Up
	Standards Board Bulletin 34


